
NORTH RIDGEVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

UTILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 6:30 p.m. 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 4, 2018 
 

To Order: 
Chairman Dennis Boose called the Utilities Committee meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Attendance:  
Members present: Councilman Dennis Boose, Gregg Westover and Councilman Martin 

DeVries. 

 

Also present: Mayor David Gillock, City Council President Kevin Corcoran, Councilman 

Bruce Abens, Utilities Director Jim Whitlock, President of Bramhall Engineering - Mike 

Bramhall, Councilwoman Michelle Hung, Assistant Clerk of Council Tara L. Peet, 

Auditor Jeff Wilcheck, Engineer Dan Rodriguez, Safety-Service Director Jeff Armbruster 

and Clerk of Council Nancy Linden. 

 

Minutes: 

Chairman Boose asked for any additions or corrections to the minutes of August 6, 2018.  

No discussion was offered.  The minutes stand approved as submitted.   

 

Discussion regarding T 90-2018: 

Chairman Boose turned the meeting over to the Administration for presentation. 

 

Safety-Service Director Armbruster asked Mr. Bramhall to present his findings. 

 

Mike Bramhall, President of Bramhall Engineering, presented a PowerPoint presentation 

(attached) which he stated represented years of work. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated the storm water utility was made up of the MS4 Program, O&M, the 

Capital Improvement Program, master planning and system modeling and life cycle 

replacement. 

 

He explained the level of service component ensuring emergency vehicles get to people’s 

homes, provide relief for homes inundated with service flow water, address waterway 

maintenance and provide a master hydrologic and hydraulic model for entire City.   

 

Mr. Bramhall stated the City has $2 million in grant money from the Turnpike Mitigation 

and Mill Creek Grant funds and the cost will be spread through a five year period.  He 

noted he planned to defer the life cycle replacement for five years.   

 

Mr. Bramhall presented a cost of service pie chart and noted most of cost comes from the 

Service Department.   He also presented a spreadsheet of current service equipment and 

projected needed equipment.  Mr. Bramhall presented a spreadsheet breakdown of labor 

costs per employee. 

 



Utilities Committee 09.04.2018  2 

 

Mr. Bramhall touched on the engineering administration and stated it has adequate staff 

in house for the first five years further adding the General Fund was carrying a lot of the 

costs.   He noted that different operating funds will be created.  

 

Mr. Bramhall discussed how they calculated ERU’s on a residential and commercial 

basis.  He noted that there will be a credit program for those that have storm water 

management systems to provide opportunities for the City to achieve a level of service 

goals.  It will also provide incentives for commercial parcels to detain stormwater.  He 

noted there will be an appeal process. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated the next steps are to adjust the rate model if needed, have Council 

approve legislation and apply credits to the top twenty commercial parcels such as the 

schools and then a trial billing cycle.  Mr. Bramhall state the current utility billing system 

will work with a few tweaks. 

 

Councilman DeVries asked what municipalities Mr. Bramhall has worked with. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated he worked with businesses within the City of Elyria. 

 

Councilman DeVries asked how long that take from start to finish. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated they finished in 2015. 

 

Chairman Boose thanked Mr. Bramhall for the presentation and all the work his firm had 

put in.  He asked what the criteria was for identifying the top twenty commercial 

properties. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated it was kind of random but the larger impervious surfaces stood out 

and those with stormwater management in place.   

 

Chairman Boose asked if a credit is applied will the credit be made up through the 

residential units taking the burden of the cost. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated they conservatively assumed everyone was eligible for a credit 

knowing that each parcel would not all be eligible.  He stated after year one there would 

be an excess and the rate could be adjusted. 

 

Chairman Boose asked if the commercial unit being charged in the same management of 

stormwater based on impervious surface as the residential unit. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated the costs were not be dumped on residents.  He explained if a 

business receives a credit, it is because they have applied the correct stormwater 

management techniques. 

 

Chairman Boose asked how he determined that the City had adequate staffing.   

 



Utilities Committee 09.04.2018  3 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated per the criteria of the MS4 Program.  They are anticipating two new 

hires in the Utilities Department be built in. 

 

Chairman Boose asked in terms of the software through the billing program would 

anything else need acquired. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated the utilities database is in Excel format as is the County.  It would be 

a matter of merging fields and integrating it into the GIS system. 

 

Engineer Rodriguez felt Mr. Bramhall did an excellent job.  He stated he provided all the 

answers that Chairman Boose asked for in advance of the meeting and further stated he 

will answer any other questions anyone may have. 

 

Safety-Service Director Armbruster stated the spreadsheet shown is forecasted to 2028. 

He noted that Lou and Brian worked together to model this and the legislation will be put 

together to make sure it is correct.   

 

Chairman Boose requested a copy of the PowerPoint for all of Council.  

 

Councilman Abens stated that some of the newer developments have retention and 

detention ponds.  HOA’s pays to maintain them.  The basins are very healthy in his 

development.   He felt that charging the developments that manage stormwater isn’t fair. 

Councilman Abens asked if there were any provisions for those that have rain barrels.   

He also stated it seemed as though a whole new department was going to be created in 

the City.  He added the Engineer stated he could manage the program.  Councilman 

Abens felt a new bureaucracy would be created if a new department was created and felt 

it was unnecessary.   

 

Chairman Boose stated he received answers when he inquired who was qualified to do 

these things and it was stated the Engineering and Service Departments. 

 

Mayor Gillock stated he had no idea where Councilman Abens came up with another 

department was going to be created.  He stated the utility would be handled by the 

Engineering Department.  He noted the goal was to manage it in house with one 

additional employee.  It will be the Service Department that will actually get the work 

completed.  He also stated that the Utilities Director, Jim Whitlock, was present and he 

will manage the billing system.  He noted Utilities Director Whitlock could answer any 

billing question. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated detention ponds in some communities work well and some don’t. He 

noted an HOA that has a detention pond will pay a little less and those without will pay a 

little more.  He also stated that it would cost more money to implement a ten cent break 

but the numbers can be changed if Council so desired. 

 



Utilities Committee 09.04.2018  4 

 

Engineer Rodriguez stated he felt HOA’s are paying for ponds that slowly release the 

water, but then the water is put into a larger system that the City addresses.  This is where 

the fee comes into play which would be outside of the HOA’s.   

 

Mr. Bramhall stated the Northeast Ohio Regional Storm District officers a credit for rain 

barrels. 

 

Kim Stermole, 37872 Sugar Ridge Road: stated she lives on a residential street and there 

are no retention or detention basins.  When she receives rain, it slowly drains in her 

backyard and is gone in half of a day.  She asked why she should be charged when her 

yard handles the water.  She stated she has over 1.5 acres where other residential homes 

have more concrete and little land.  She noted that the homes on Lexington Way have 

homes on well over five acres.  They should not be charged what she is being charged. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated a residential home is one ERU which is $3.76 per month. The 

imperviousness of the land is the closest relationship to the club everyone is in. This has 

been the best method determined so far. Businesses pay the lion’s share. He felt the 

residential parcels were being treated fairly under the current calculations. 

 

Chairman Boose asked if there was an average businesses will pay. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated no.  He noted the schools are over 300 ERU’s. 

 

Safety-Service Director Armbruster stated there are limits to the credits at fifty percent.  

There will be a limit to the schools credit. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated there is a twenty-five percent educational credit and up to fifty 

percent for providing detention. 

 

Albert Krage, Sugar Ridge Road asked how the farmers and farm fields were calculated. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated the Administration suggested that agriculture parcels are not subject 

to the utility fee.   

 

Chairman Boose asked if they would be charged for a parcel that contained their barn or 

home. 

 

Mr. Bramhall stated yes.    

 

Chairman Boose thanked Mr. Bramhall and everyone for their participation and 

questions.  He stated no action will be taken this evening so the information presented 

can be reviewed.    

 

Adjournment: 
Chairman Boose adjourned the meeting at 7:19 p.m. 

 



Utilities Committee 09.04.2018  5 

 

 

Date Approved: _____________________________ 

 

 

___________________________________________ 

Tara L. Peet, MMC 

Assistant Clerk of Council 



CITY OF NORTH RIDGEVILLE 
STORMWATER UTILITY 

 
PROGRAM UPDATE &  

DRAFT OF ADMINISTRATION RECCOMENDATIONS 
 

SEPTEMBER 4, 2018 



AGENDA 

•

•

•

•

•



•

•

•

•

•





1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.



1.  

2.  

3.  

4.  

5.  



 
 

SERVICE 
DEPARTMENT TOTAL 

68%  

MS4 & PROGRAM 
ADMIN 19% 

MASTER PLANNING 
7% 

CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT 

PROJECTS (CIP's) 
5% 

LIFE CYCLE  1% 

STORMWATER UTILITY PROGRAM YEARS 1-5 

SERVICE DEPARTMENT TOTAL MS4 & PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION

MASTER PLANNING CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP's)

LIFE CYCLE REPLACEMENT



 

SERVICE DEPARTMENT  63% 

MS4 & PROGRAM 
ADMINISTRATION 

6% 

MASTER PLANNING 3% 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM 14% 

LIFE CYCLE REPLACEMENT 
13% 

 

STORMWATER UTILITY YEARS 6-10 

SERVICE DEPARTMENT TOTAL MS4 & PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION MASTER PLANNING

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS (CIP's) LIFE CYCLE REPLACEMENT



COS-SERVICE DEPARTMENT 
EQUIPMENT 





 
COS-SERVICE DEPARTMENT  

LABOR 
 





COS-ENGINEERING & 
ADMINISTRATION 



COS-FINANCIAL SUMMARY 





North Ridgeville  
ERU Development 

July 2016 



9/6/2018 17 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

ERU Analysis 

• Data Sources 
• North Ridgeville parcel data (subset of Lorain County GIS parcel data) 

• North Ridgeville ROW polygon layer (subset of Lorain County GIS ROW data) 

• Lorain County Auditor class code information 

• 2015 Lorain County Aerial Imagery 

• Supplemental Imagery (ESRI, Bing, Google, Google Street View) 



9/6/2018 18 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

Lorain County Class Codes (LUC) 

• 100 Series - Agricultural 

• 200 Series  - Mineral/Natural Resource 

• 300 Series - Industrial 

• 400 Series - Commercial 

• 500 Series - Residential 

• 600 Series - Tax Exempt 

• 700 Series - Tax Abatements 

• 800 Series - Railroads 



9/6/2018 19 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

Residential Properties 

• Process 
• Filter parcel dataset for 510 – 511 

class codes (Single Family 
Residential) 11,227 parcels 

• Use ArcGIS Sampling Design Tool 
to randomly select 500 parcels 

• Digitize randomly selected parcels 
and calculate IA 



9/6/2018 20 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

Residential Properties 

• Results 
• 500 parcels digitized 

• Average IA per parcel = 3819.72 ft2 



9/6/2018 21 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

Commercial Properties 

• Process 
• Filter parcel dataset, remove 500 series 

class codes (Single Family Residential) 
and vacant class  codes 

• Digitize parcels and calculate IA 

• Review commercial/industrial vacant 
parcels and digitize any visible IA 

• Maintain spreadsheet of parcel IDs 
containing anomalies for further 
investigation 



9/6/2018 22 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

Commercial Properties 

• Results 
• Over 500 parcels digitized 

• Commercial IA = 28,356,219 ft2 



9/6/2018 23 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

Land Use Codes 

• Parcel listed as 510 (Single 

Family Dwelling) 

• Appears to be a business 

 

 



9/6/2018 24 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

Billing Considerations 

• Houses span several properties 

• How will they be billed? 

• Consolidated Retail/Commercial 

• Shopping areas/strip malls 

 



9/6/2018 25 HDS Laser Scanning North Ridgeville ERU Development 

ERU Analysis Summary 

• Average IA per residential parcel is 
approximately 3820 ft2 (1 ERU) 

• There are approximately 11,250 residential 
properties 

• Total commercial IA is approximately 
28,356,219 ft2 

• There are an estimated  18,675 total ERUs 
within North Ridgeville 

 

 

 

 



1.

2.

 

3.

 

4.

 



•

•

•

•

•  

•  




